
William Biddlecombe
Councilmember

Joe Dike
Councilmember

Sam Artino
Councilmember

Monty Tapp
Mayor

Mark Claus
Vice-Mayor

Matt Grieves
Councilmember

Joel Hagy
Councilmember

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Approval of Minutes
III.1 Approval of minutes of the February 15, 2023 Safety Committee meeting.
III.2 Approval of the minutes of the May 22, 2023 Safety Committee meeting

IV. Old Business

V. New Business
V.1 HPD License Plate Readers Presentation 
V.2 Proposed Nuisance Ordinance
V.3 Proposed Buoy Locations at Nickel Plate Beach and Old Homestead I

VI. Other Business

VII. Adjourn

 
CITY COUNCIL SAFETY COMMITTEE — COMMITTEE MEETING

Wednesday, September 20, 2023 @ 4:00 PM 
Large Conference Room

 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

 



THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO
Huron Safety Committee

Meeting Minutes
February 15, 2023 – 4:00pm

A meeting of the Council Safety Committee was called to order by Monty Tapp on Wednesday, February 
15, 2023 at 4:02pm at Huron City Hall. Committee members in attendance: Monty Tapp and William 
Biddlecombe. Member absent: Matt Grieves.

Staff in attendance: Police Chief Terry Graham, Street Foreman Steve Didelot, Service Director Stuart 
Hamilton and Executive Administrative Assistant /Clerk of Council Terri Welkener.  

Approval of Minutes
Motion by Chief Graham to accept the minutes of the September 24, 2021 meeting.  

Mr. Biddlecombe seconded. All in favor, minutes of September 24, 2021 meeting were adopted.

Old Business
None.

New Business

Reconfiguration of Signage on Williams Street
Mr. Hamilton said that we have received requests from multiple people to change the signage at the 
intersection of Williams Street and US-6. The request is to change the yield to a full stop to try and stop 
accidents and stop from moving and second-guessing who has the right-of-way. Mr. Hamilton indicated a 
diagram of what the signage would look like (see attached Exhibit A). Certified ODOT signage would be 
installed at all of the junctions. We will keep our DO NOT ENTER signs in place. One of the biggest 
components of this is our Police Chief. Chief Graham said it is all about safety. The turn lane approaching 
from the west will remain, the only thing they are doing is changing the YIELD to STOP. Chief Graham 
asked if any of this would change in Phase 2 of the US 6 Project. Mr. Hamilton answered that this 
intersection will not be touched by Phase 2. ODOT was consulted about this change, because US-6 is a 
state route. They were fine with the change, as long as the configuration of the road didn’t change. The 
current configuration with a YIELD and a turn lane is asking for trouble. Chief Graham said most of the 
accidents at that intersection involve Huron residents. They are many near-accidents, in addition to the 
actual accidents. Mr. Biddlecombe added that years ago, he was traveling west on US6 and someone just 
blew right through Williams, and if he hadn’t turned and actually gone onto Williams, he would have t-
boned that driver.

Mr. Tapp asked if this change would have to come before Council. Mr. Hamilton answered that it would, 
as it requires the traffic map. We needed to run this by the Safety Committee for a recommendation to 
Council, first. Chief Graham couldn’t see why anyone would oppose the change in signs. Mr. Biddlecombe 
wondered how long it would take before people keep going through, even with the STOP signs. Chief 
Graham added that there will be a learning curve, just like when we put the lights up at Rye Beach and 
Route 2 - people were just driving right through there.

Mr. Hamilton asked of anyone has any objections to the new signage. There were no objections, and it was 
recommended that the matter be referred to Council for consideration.

Mr. Didelot said that they have signs that say a STOP sign will be installed in Spring of 2023, which then 
can put up if Council passes the legislation. It might take a little while to get the stop bars painted, as that 



is dependent on weather conditions. Mr. Tapp asked about the rules relating to stop lines. Chief Graham 
answered that you should stop at the stop line, and then if you creep up to see, stop again before proceeding.

Water Safety Day
Charlie Ruggles told Mr. Tapp that the Fire Department wants to get back to having a Water Safety Day. 
They haven’t had it since 2017. The Division of Watercraft is part of that, and it’s going to be the week of 
May 22nd. They will have it at the Boat Basin, and will be for 3rd and 4th Graders. They solicit donations, 
because they buy life jackets and t-shirts for all of the kids. Chief Graham added that the Coast Guard is 
involved in that and the Police have been involved, as well. In the past, they had little educational stations 
and landed the Coast Guard helicopter here, and they bus the kids down there during school. Charlie can 
connect with Mr. Lasko or Terri Welkener to see what they need. 

The Safety Committee meeting was adjourned at 4:14pm

Adopted:  _______________________ _______________________________________
Terri S. Welkener



THE CITY OF HURON, OHIO
Huron Safety Committee

Meeting Minutes
May 22, 2023 – 3:30pm

A meeting of the Council Safety Committee was called to order by Monty Tapp on Monday, May 22, 2023
at 3:30pm at Huron City Hall. Committee members in attendance: Monty Tapp and William 
Biddlecombe. Member absent: Matt Grieves.

Staff in attendance: Police Chief Terry Graham, Captain Mike Hohler and Executive Administrative 
Assistant /Clerk of Council Terri Welkener.  

Old Business
None.

New Business

Buoy Locations 
Mr. Tapp recognized the representatives from Old Homestead I and Nickel Plate Association in attendance. 

Mr. Tapp explained that all of the buoys are placed using GPS coordinates, which locations must be 
approved by ODNR. If they are not approved, and they are located somewhere else, our safety forces have 
no jurisdiction. The City requested a relocation of the Nickel Plate Beach boat lane further to the east, but 
that request was not approved by ODNR. We are here trying to find out the safest place for locating the 
buoys. Everyone is aware that from the east pier (the old pier at Nickel Plate) all the way to Old Homestead 
I is public beach. He is fairly familiar with the Breakwater and Nickel Plate Cottages there, and those 
property lines, on average, are about 40-50 feet from the cottages. The rest of the property to the north is 
public property. Ideally, where the grass is out there at Old Homestead I (this is only for safety) would 
probably be the safest place just because that’s where the least amount people lay out, but it is private 
property. Nobody owns the land under the water, and anyone can move along the water at any point in time. 
He talked to Chief Graham and he totally understands that if the buoys are located in front of Old Homestead 
I’s grassy area, when people come in, they will be on private property. We are not here to facilitate 
trespassing. 

Chief Graham said that the reason why ODNR has approved the application yet has nothing to do with the 
City. The City did everything it was supposed to do. Last year, the Safety Committee agreed to move the 
mooring lane over, the City applied for those new location and, for lack of a better term, ODNR dropped 
the ball. The City is not stalling it, they didn’t stop it. ODNR, through a clerical error, did not approve the 
application. That is why, when the PD put the buoys out on Friday, they were instructed to put them where 
they were originally until the City is told otherwise. It is his opinion that the City of Huron has always 
marketed itself as a lakefront community with water activities, the Boat Basin and beaches. He thinks it is 
important to have a dedicated mooring lane somewhere for water toys. There is tubing, water skiing, and 
jet skis are very popular, and those people need to come in and out to pick up other people in their families 
and go back out. We need a safe avenue for that to get done. If we have no mooring lane all the way down 
Nickel Plate Beach, they are going to come in regardless, and they want to provide them safe access in and 
out to pick up their beachgoers, friends and family members. He thinks that the mooring lane is important 
for safety reasons, but absent permission from the private property owner, it is his opinion that a mooring 
lane should be on public property so that they are not facilitating or encouraging trespassing. There is 
confusion regarding where the property line ends. It was his job once they got these buoys placed to meet 
with every association. It wasn’t even 30 minutes after they got the buoys were placed that his phone was 
ringing and his email was blowing up. He wanted to meet these associations to educate the people of their 



associations. The property line ends at the waterline of the day. There is no average, there is no high tide, 
and there is no low tide. If Niagara Falls sped up and we got 100 yards more beach, you just 100 more yards 
of beach. If we have high water, like what happened in Chaska, where they lost all of their beach, the 
property line still ends at the waterline. The State owns the water, so people can be in front of your private 
beaches, so long as they are in the water. They deal with this every year at Chaska Beach for the 4th of July. 
The kids hop in the water, and there is nothing they can do. He would like to find an amicable resolution to 
this because he does not want to put their Marine Patrol officers into a mess where one neighborhood is 
yelling at that them, another one loves them and another one hates them. The word “buoy” has nearly turned 
into a 4-letter word for him. He wants us all to agree, and then we can educate our residents so that we do
not have this problem where he has got people coming out into the water screaming at our boat patrol 
officers because they are doing something wrong or not doing something. It is confusing out there, because 
it goes all the way down to the eastern edge of Nickel Plate/western edge of Old Homestead I, then it ends,
then it is open down to Old Homestead II (there is a little box for OH II), and then there is a little box for 
Chaska. That is why they are trying to mark this to make it as easily identifiable as possible. NO BOATS 
means no boats. Some people have a false believe that if they turn their boat off and bring it in in by a line, 
that it can be there. It cannot – it does not say no boats under power. There are no boats allowed inside of 
the NO BOAT buoys. They are just trying to comply with the law, make it as safe as possible, and make 
sure all the residents are educated in this. He has been an officer in Huron for 35 years, and ever since we 
started this buoy thing, it has been like a civil war. Everyone is laughing about it, because they know it’s 
true. They are going to make some adjustments to where the buoys are right now – he has already talked to 
Old Homestead I – but if they do not get those anchors set, they hop on the bottom of the lake. They are 
constantly playing with them, especially after high winds and waves, to get them back where they belong. 
It is a constant all-year-long process. They are just trying to get to a safe situation where everyone can agree 
on buoy placement. No matter if they continue with the suggestion of last year where the boat lane buoy 
locations are flipped into the Old Homestead I side, or they agree to another location, they still must get 
this approved by ODNR. He has no basis to make this statement, but he would be surprised if it got done 
this summer. They buoys must remain where they are until we can come up with a solution agreed by 
everyone, and then the City will file the application and get started. It would be a borderline miracle if they 
are going to get this done this summer. The Clerk added that a change, other than what was already 
submitted, would be next year, for sure, because the applications are accepted through November, and they 
do not act on them until spring. 

Mr. Richard Gordon from Old Homestead I aid that nobody from their neighborhood was advised that 
somebody petitioned the change. What the change is may be amicable, but he does not know what the 
change is. Mr. Tapp answered that they had some complaints about it being in front of the cottages, and the 
Safety Committee’s job is to look at the safest location for the boat lane - is where is it currently located 
compared to places on either the east side or west side the safest, probably not. He can tell you where he 
thinks the safest place would be, but he is not one to say we should put it in front of private property, either. 
The only thing the Safety Committee is looking at is safety. He talked to Chief Graham, and the only other 
spot they feel may solve the problem would be in front of where the ditch comes out to the lake. Chief 
Graham reminded Mr. Gordon that their residents use the mooring lane, too, to bring in jet skis, and that is 
going to place it even further away from Old Homestead. Maybe Old Homestead I will agree to put it on 
the westernmost edge of their property. Mr. Gordon said that is where it is now. Their property line is a 
severe angle to the lighthouse. If you came off the buoys now. You are probably on Old Homestead I 
property. When you are standing on shore and looking out, it’s a completely different perspective. Right 
now, he looks at those buoys and they are probably 75’ to the west of where they were last year. The Nickel 
Plate Association representative said last year, they felt they were coming in on the opposite angle from 
this year. Chief Graham said that if you ever set buoys before, it’s like lining up hay in the wind. Ideally, 
they want that mooring lane to come 90 degrees off the beach, straight out. It shouldn’t be on any angles. 
Buoys move. If they agree to move it to the middle of Nickel Plate, they are moving it farther away from 
Old Homestead I residents, and maybe they like it at the eastern edge of the beach, so that they can more 



easily access their water toys. Mr. Gordon agreed that it is convenient for them where it is now. Where is 
it currently located, it is already located past their property line, which they have no problem with, but the 
City is sending out something and they don’t know those GPS locations. Mr. Tapp answered that that is 
why they are here today. They can’t change any of the current locations. Mr. Gordon said that he agrees 
that the best location is where it was last year. There was some discussion that it is in the same location this 
year, but it may have moved since placement. They discussed leaving the two eastern buoys in their current 
locations, and flip the western 2 buoys to the east side of the current boat lane. The Nickel Plate Association 
representative said that the problem is that people do not acknowledge the boat lane and swim there and 
take their toys and rafts. They are sitting in mooring lane, and the boats are coming in and if something 
were to happen to the swimmers, they are told that the boater is the one responsible. In other words, the 
boat lane is supposed to be for boats or jet skis coming in, but the kids still swim in the lane. We have to 
educate the people, as well. The people should stay out of the boat lane because that’s one of the hazards 
that they see. Thank God no one has gotten hurt, so far, but what’s to say that the boat or jet ski doesn’t 
come in crazily, or on an angle, and somebody gets hurt? Mr. Tapp answered that they don’t want anyone 
to get hurt, and maybe if the lane was moved to the east, it would be better. It was suggested that the read 
ball should read, “Boats Only” – either put it on with Magic Marker or paint it on. Chief Graham answered 
that those red balls are navigational aids, and that means it is a mooring lane. The problem is that there is 
no prohibition to swimming in a mooring lane. 

The Nickel Plate Association representative said that they had a meeting with a couple of gentlemen a few 
years ago, before the City got its new City Manager, and it was with regard to the beach itself – cleaning 
the beach. The beach is cleaned by A-1 before the ditch, and then they stop. They have been paying for that 
beach cleaning every 2 weeks themselves. The Clerk agreed to check the terms of the contract with Cooner 
Enterprises. Nickel Plate Association pays $1,200/year to have that beach sifted bi-weekly – they have for 
5-7 years.

It was agreed that they would straighten up the mooring lane, and fix Old Homestead I’s westernmost 
buoys. As soon as they can get someone in the water, they will get them moved. 

Old Homestead I will submit the proposal for the new boat lane location to its Trustees for approval. This 
new location involves flipping the two westerly buoys to the east (leaving the current easterly buoys where 
they are). The Clerk must prepare a new Application for approval by Council, and then submit the same to 
ODNR. 

The ODNR advised one of the attendees that it is very rate to have swim buoys located on the Great Lakes. 
This is the only place on the Great Lakes where they have swim buoys. All in attendance agreed that the 
official buoys are a good thing. Chief Graham stated that boats in the mooring lane must be at idle speed
and they have a duty to avoid swimmers. Those swimmers are like pedestrians in the road, they get the 
right-of-way. They are out there watching that, because people are cutting the corners of the mooring lane. 
They will go over and talk to them – they are out there for education and safety, not necessarily to write up 
tickets. Some people do talk themselves into tickets – that’s when that happens. He also asked that the 
associations remind their residents that their property ends at the water line of the day. 

Old Homestead I asked that when the application is prepared, that their swim buoy locations be changed to 
get them evenly spaced.

The Safety Committee meeting was adjourned at 4:09pm

Adopted:  _______________________ _______________________________________
Terri S. Welkener










	City Council Safety Committee Agenda
	Huron-1043-2019 - 02-15-2023 Safety Committee Minutes DRAFT.docx
	Huron-1042-2019 - 05-22-23 Safety Committee Minutes DRAFT.docx
	Huron-1040-2019 - Nuisance Ordinance Sandusky.pdf
	Huron-1041-2019 - Huron East Side Buoy Layout 2023 FINAL 2.pdf

